
St Ignace Zoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Topic: City Council Meeting 

Time: May 16, 2022 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88012199404 

 

Meeting ID: 880 1219 9404 

One tap mobile 

+16465588656,,88012199404# US (New York) 

+13017158592,,88012199404# US (Washington DC) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

Meeting ID: 880 1219 9404 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcjF0dLem1 



 

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, May 16, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting 

Zoom Meeting ID: 880 1219 9404 

 
****A G E N D A**** 

 
1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) PUBLIC HEARINGS—Water & Wastewater System Improvements 
6) Additions to Agenda 
7) Public Comment Regarding Agenda Items (2-minute limit) 
8) Consideration of Minutes of May 02, 2022 
9) Old Business 

 
A. EUPConnect Collaborative Update 

 
10) New Business 
 

A. Proclamation—Jim Clapperton 
B. Special Event Resolution—Brew Bash 
C. FD AED Purchase 
D. Budget Amendments 
E. Financials 
F. Council Vacancy 
 

11) Consideration of Bills  
12) Public Comment Regarding Non-Agenda Items (3-minute limit) 
13) City Manager’s Report 
14) Committee Reports 

A. SAEMS Minutes 
B. Finance Committee 

15) Council Member Comments                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 

City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider  
TDD (800) 649-3777 



 

NOTICE OF PROJECT PLAN PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The City of St. Ignace will hold a public hearing on the proposed Phase I – Water System 

Improvements project for the purpose of receiving comments from interested persons. 

 

The hearing will be held at 7 p.m. on Monday, May 16th at the following location:  St. Ignace City 

Hall, 396 N State Street, St. Ignace, MI 

 

The purpose of the proposed project is to rehabilitate the City’s water distribution facilities 

including storage tanks, pump stations, and the water treatment plant. This rehabilitation will 

improve the performance to meet present day regulatory standards, and replace outdated and 

deteriorated treatment systems to minimize long term operation costs.  

 

Project construction will involve Replacement and rehabilitation of Water Treatment Plant 

components located at 999 Church St. and Shore well components located at East end of 

Bertrand St. within City limits. Inspection, coatings, and general rehabilitation will be conducted on 

the Evergreen Shores, Marley St., and Second St. elevated storage tanks. Additional water 

distribution system replacement, consisting of ~23,000 LF of water main replacement, new water 

services to curb stop, including replacement of any disturbed lead services, and associated 

restoration. 

 

Impacts of the proposed project include short term construction related impacts and financial 

impacts to the City’s water system users. No significant long term adverse impacts are anticipated 

on either cultural or environmentally sensitive resources.  

 

The estimated cost to users for the proposed project will be approximately $11.25 million total 

project costs with costs to individual users dependent on the level and type of project financing 

that can be secured by the City for the project. The City intends to pursue project financing with 

the goal of minimizing impact to the system users.  

 

Copies of the plan detailing the proposed project are available for inspection at the following 

location(s): 

A physical copy is available at the City Hall in the City Clerk’s Office: 

396 N State Street 

St. Ignace, MI 49781 



 

An electronic PDF is available on the City of St. Ignace website at 

https://www.cityofstignace.com/mayor-council/events/4976  

 

Written comments received before the hearing record is closed on 2 p.m. on Monday, May 16th.  

will receive responses in the final project plan.  Written comments should be sent to: 

 City of St. Ignace Manager’s Office 

 C/O Darcy Long, City Manager 

396 N State Street 

St. Ignace, MI 49781 

 

https://www.cityofstignace.com/mayor-council/events/4976


 

NOTICE OF PROJECT PLAN PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The City of St. Ignace will hold a public hearing on the proposed Phase I – Wastewater 

Improvements project for the purpose of receiving comments from interested persons. 

 

The hearing will be held at 7 p.m. on Monday, May 16th at the following location:  St. Ignace City 

Hall, 396 N State Street, St. Ignace, MI 

 

The purpose of the proposed project is to replace sanitary sewer. The sewer being replaced is 

nearing the end of its useful life, has structural issues, and will reduce maintenance issues 

including backups.  

 

Project construction will involve replacement of ~8,500 LF of sanitary sewer. 

 

Impacts of the proposed project include short term construction related impacts and financial 

impacts to the City’s wastewater system users. No significant long term adverse impacts are 

anticipated on either cultural or environmentally sensitive resources.  

 

The estimated cost to users for the proposed project will be approximately $3.5 million total 

project costs with costs to individual users dependent on the level and type of project financing 

that can be secured by the City for the project. The City intends to pursue project financing with 

the goal of minimizing impact to the system users.  

 

Copies of the plan detailing the proposed project are available for inspection at the following 

location(s): 

A physical copy is available at the City Hall in the City Clerk’s Office: 

396 N State Street 

St. Ignace, MI 49781 

An electronic PDF is available on the City of St. Ignace website at 

https://www.cityofstignace.com/mayor-council/events/4976   

 

Written comments received before the hearing record is closed on 2 p.m. on Monday, May 16th.  

will receive responses in the final project plan.  Written comments should be sent to: 

 City of St. Ignace Manager’s Office 

 C/O Darcy Long, City Manager 

396 N State Street 

https://www.cityofstignace.com/mayor-council/events/4976


 

St. Ignace, MI 49781 



City of St. Ignace 
Council Proceedings 

(Unofficial) 
 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, May 2, 2022, in the City 
Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference available. 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor LaLonde, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Councilmember Williford gave the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmembers Clapperton (via Zoom – approved 
2/7/22), Fullerton, Cronan, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis 
and Councilmember Williford. 
   
ABSENT:   None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Darcy Long, City Manager; Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer; Stephanie 
Baar, Assistant to the City Manager; Charles Palmer, City Attorney; Tony Brown, Police Chief; 
Joe Rogers, Police Officer; Scott Marshall, DDA Director; Morgan Mills, Recreation Director.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – LEASE OF CITY PROPERTY DOCK #3 
Mayor LaLonde announced the Public Hearing was being held with regards to leasing City 
property to Mackinac Island Ferry Company, LLC d/b/a Arnold Freight Company. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to consider the 
Dock 3 Lease Resolution with discussion during the Public Comment and consideration during 
Old Business. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Fullerton, Cronan, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor  
         Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Clapperton. 
No:  None. 
 
At this time, it was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to 
open the Public Hearing at 7:04 p.m. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers 
         Williford, Clapperton, Fullerton and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public comment was received by City of St. Ignace residents, Mackinac Island City Council 
members, as well as Arnold Freight and Carriage Tours’ management. 
After a lengthy period of discussion, it was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by 
Councilmember Cronan, to close the Public Hearing at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Clapperton,              
         Fullerton, Cronan and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 



ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Mayor LaLonde – Fire Department purchase. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – AGENDA ITEMS (2-min limit) 
No public comment was received. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2022, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
AND APRIL 25, 2022, SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING: 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to approve the 
minutes from the April 18, 2022, Regular Council meeting, and April 25, 2022, Special Council 
meeting, as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Clapperton, Fullerton, Cronan,  
         Mayor LaLonde and Councilmember Pelter. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
DOCK 3 USE AGREEMENT & RESOLUTION 
At this time, it was moved by Councilmember Fullerton, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, 
to reconsider and postpone the Dock 3 Use Agreement & Lease Resolution. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Councilmembers Williford, Clapperton, Fullerton, Cronan, Mayor LaLonde,  
         Councilmember Pelter and Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  MICHIGAN FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE (FOP) CONTRACT 
 
City Manager Long informed Council that, after several months of negotiations with new Union 
representation, the Police Department has presented a completed contract with the FOP.  The 
document presented displayed both redacted prior language and highlighted current language.  
Councilmember Pelter requested clarification regarding the following:   
Article 21 – FMLA leave is considered Federal Regulation;  
Article 34 – the Vacation Earning Rate is considered in hours by years-of-service;  
Article 46 Uniforms – only the first paragraph regarding allowance is included;  
Article 33 Holiday Provisions – Section D not identified correctly.  
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley also requested verification of the consideration of retroactive pay 
from January 1st, as well as retroactive leave accrual/pay and holiday pay. 
At this time, it was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to 
approve the FOP Contract with the changes as explained by Officer J. Rogers, FOP Union 
Steward. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Councilmembers Clapperton, Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, 



         Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
B.  MOWING BIDS 
 
City Manager Long informed Council of the mowing bid received from Precision Edge Outdoor 
Services for a cost of $1,140 per mow for the areas that include the Fire Hall lawn, LBE and 
ballfields, McCann field, Lake Street courts and Truckey Street tennis courts.  Recreation 
Director Mills recommended accepting the bid, as current Little Bear East staff is not capable of 
taking on those duties.  
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
accepting the mowing bid from Precision Edge Outdoor Services for $1,140 per mow for two 
years. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor 
         Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Clapperton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mayor LaLonde – Fire Department Purchase. 
Mayor LaLonde presented Council with the Fire Department’s request to purchase rope rescue 
equipment using the Sault Tribe’s 2% contributions.  Three bids were received:  one from 
Witmer for a cost of $4,999; one from Pomasl for $7,895; and one from CMC Pro for $8,006.  It 
was the Fire Department’s recommendation to purchase the equipment from Witmer for the 
lowest bid. 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to approve 
the lowest bid for the rope rescue equipment from Witmer for $4,999. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem  
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Clapperton and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
paying the bills in the amount of $40,487.97. 
 
APS WATER SERVICES CORPORATION   113.48  
      BS & A SOFTWARE   4,214.00  
      C2AE   3,874.33  
      ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY   9,887.96  
      FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386   297.25  
      GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA DISTRIBUTION   226.20  
      HAWKINS   3,927.43  
      HYDRITE CHEMICAL CO   11,361.31  
      JOSEPH STEARNS   293.83  
      



KSS ENTERPRISES   775.51  
      LEVERING SPORTS INC   222.75  
      MICHAEL RICHARD LAMB   485.00  
      NCL OF WISCONSIN INC   229.61  
      NORTHERN LIGHTS FAMILY OUTFITTERS   155.00  
OSCAR W LARSON   190.00  
      PARAGON LABORATORIES, INC   223.40  
      R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR   241.98  
      RUDYARD ELECTRICAL SERVICE INC   260.00  
      SYNCB/AMAZON   325.30  
      TOM H EVASHEVSKI P L L C   270.00  
      WESLEY H MAURER JR   42.51  
      WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC   2,871.12  
      
 Grand Total:                        $40,487.97 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers 
         Williford, Clapperton, Cronan and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT - NON-AGENDA ITEMS (3 min limit) 
No public comment was received. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
City Manager Long reported to Council that he has met with various people regarding the repair 
and replacement of the boardwalk, seeking opportunities for financial assistance.  DDA Director 
Marshall presented a slide show of some of the worst areas of the boardwalk, suggesting 
different types of surface replacement in certain areas.  Mr. Marshall proposed to plan a 
maintenance schedule with DPW staff when available and pursue grants and contributions from 
various entities, as well as update easements. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Finance/Utility Committee – Monday, May 2nd 10:30 a.m. 
City Manager Long stated the Marina has been notified by the Coast Guard to replace a red 
strobe light at the entrance to the harbor to avoid causing a navigational hazard.  Marina 
Director Stearns recommended purchasing both the green and red replacement lights, as the 
other has lasted beyond it’s suggested life expectancy of 10 years.  It was the consensus of 
Council to purchase both navigational lights. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Councilmembers thanked everyone for attending the meeting and for their comments during the 
Public Hearing. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 
 
______________________________                          _________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



 

PROCLAMATION 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Jim Clapperton was a member of the St. Ignace City Council from 

2009 to 2022; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in his 13 years on the Council, Jim dedicated his time to serving on 
many different committees, including Negotiations, Finance, Audit, Cemetery, 
Insurance, Sault Tribe Liaison, NAGPRA, and Tree Committees; the EMS Board; and 
the Library Board; and  
 

 WHEREAS, Jim offered his knowledge and experience as a resource to fellow 

Councilmembers, assisting new and incumbent members throughout his years on the 
Council; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Jim always took the time to read and research issues, offer 

thoughtful advice and ideas, and took great measures to make himself available to 
the City, even in the face of other commitments and difficulties; and 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that the City of St. Ignace and its 
employees recognize Jim Clapperton for his endless, selfless dedication to the City, 
contributing hundreds and hundreds of hours of his time.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, that the City of St. Ignace honor 

Jim Clapperton, on this 16th Day of May, 2022, for his dedicated service to the City of 
St. Ignace, and wish he rest in peace. 
 
 

CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 
 
By:  ____________________________                                            Date:   May 16, 2022 
                  William LaLonde, Mayor                  



 
RESOLUTION 

 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by  , supported by  

  : 
 
WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to conduct the St. 

Ignace Brew Bash 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, this event requires the usage of the Marina parking lot and main dock at  
13 South State Street; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, 
requires certain criteria be met in order for the event to be held; 

 
WHEREAS, it is understood that there may be fees for certain services provided by the  

City; and 
 
WHEREAS, this event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State and Local 

regulations in place at that time to qualify for Special Events status; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the St. Ignace City Council has determined 
that the St. Ignace Visitors Bureau does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
the Ordinance No. 413, and 
 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does approve the St. Ignace Visitors 
Bureau to be a Special Event Organization and approves the usage of the City Marina parking 
lot and main dock at 13 South State Street for this event on: 
 

   Saturday August 6, 2022, from 2 p.m. to 10 p.m.  
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
Yes:   
No:  
 
Absent:   
 
Resolution declared  
 

I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the  
St. Ignace City Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, May 16, 2022 at 7:00 
p.m. 
 

 
________________________________ 
             Andrea Insley, City Clerk 

         
 

























Transfer or Amendment From Account To Account Amount Budgeted Dollar Amount Notes

General Fund

Amend Budget

101-247-900.000 Board of 

Review Print & Publish  $                               50.00  $              450.00 
BoR newspaper notice costs

Amend Budget

101-301-750.000 Operating 

Supplies  $                         4,000.00  $          8,690.00 

Amend to reflect 

revenue/reimbursements received

Amend Budget

101-301-960.000 Education & 

Training  $                         3,500.00  $          3,924.95 

Amend to reflect reimbursement 

received 

Amend Budget

101-703-900.000 ZBA Print & 

Publish  $                               50.00  $              350.00 
ZBA newspaper notice costs

Major Streets

Amend Budget 202-451-801.001 Engineering  $                                     -    $        13,650.00 
Ferry Lane Soil Borings 

Building Inspector 

Fund

Amend Budget 249-000-491.000 STR Permits  $                         6,500.00  $          9,000.00 
STR Permit Fees

Amend Budget
249-000-627.000 Inspection 

Fees  $                         3,000.00  $          4,000.00 
Increased due to STR Inspections

Dock 3 Fund

Budget Transfer Dock 3 Fund (273) Major Streets (202)  $                                     -    $          6,825.00 

Transfer to Major Streets for Ferry 

Lane Soil Borings 

CITY OF ST. IGNACE

BUDGET TRANSFERS & AMENDMENTS

16-May-22



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 1/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

6.27 1,308,801.00 82,040.91 0.00 TAXESTAXES
0.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 LICEENSES AND PERMITSLIC/PERM

59.48 28,030.00 16,671.54 16,258.02 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
0.00 40,477.00 0.00 0.00 CONT FM LOCAL UNITSCONT
7.19 161,660.00 11,619.50 1,234.16 OTHER REVENUEO/REV

10.12 1,100.00 111.30 0.00 FINES AND FORFEITURESFIN/FOR
11.02 3,500.00 385.84 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 115,370.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

34.79 342,465.00 119,130.64 65,166.16 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

11.49 2,002,203.00 229,959.73 82,658.34 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
32.60 26,900.00 8,769.36 1,785.05 CITY COUNCIL101
30.40 165,595.00 50,334.39 12,311.33 CITY MANAGER172
0.00 32,500.00 0.00 0.00 ACCOUNTING DEPT191
1.31 12,900.00 168.81 36.41 ADMINISTRATION201

35.18 290,875.00 102,333.46 24,160.34 CLERK215
18.93 3,900.00 738.19 93.74 CENTRAL SUPPLIES234
46.88 2,220.00 1,040.82 134.10 BOARD OF REVIEW247
35.17 36,300.00 12,768.34 2,950.84 ASSESSOR257
9.78 6,825.00 667.49 0.00 ELECTIONS262

39.56 30,650.00 12,125.27 2,723.65 BLDG & GROUNDS265
48.66 40,000.00 19,464.60 2,780.00 ATTORNEY266
29.03 611,336.00 177,484.85 48,133.36 POLICE301
65.23 48,235.00 31,465.55 60.60 SAFETY & HEALTH335
27.03 120,050.00 32,453.59 5,610.11 FIRE DEPARTMENT336
37.76 117,660.00 44,424.39 9,501.82 PUBLIC WORKS441
34.03 39,000.00 13,271.10 3,163.21 STREET LIGHTHING448
0.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 GARBAGE COLLECTION528
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 PLANNING701

71.27 650.00 463.25 310.81 ZONING BD OF APPEALS703
4.04 78,014.00 3,152.00 0.00 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT704
5.00 71,737.00 3,584.09 2,991.39 PARK MAINT770
4.91 4,195.00 206.15 34.37 BOAT LAUNCH773

25.61 96,000.00 24,588.84 5,680.71 FRINGE BENEFITS953
26.84 26,300.00 7,060.11 0.00 INSURANCE & BONDS954
0.00 71,330.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

28.22 1,937,072.00 546,564.65 122,461.84 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

486.10 65,131.00 (316,604.92)(39,803.50)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

28.22 1,937,072.00 546,564.65 122,461.84 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
11.49 2,002,203.00 229,959.73 82,658.34 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 2/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS
Revenues

4.49 66,520.00 2,988.95 0.00 TAXESTAXES
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 CONT FM LOCAL UNITSCONT

82.41 75,000.00 61,807.98 10,008.34 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
19.66 2,300.00 452.22 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
38.80 288,800.00 112,059.69 24,338.75 STATE REVENUEST REV
39.51 4,000.00 1,580.48 395.12 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

40.51 441,620.00 178,889.32 34,742.21 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
1.82 2,091.00 38.04 0.00 SIDEWALKS444
0.00 9,000.00 0.00 0.00 ROAD CONSTRUCTION451

22.64 79,599.00 18,017.66 9,839.00 ROUTINE MAINT463
0.00 2,697.00 0.00 0.00 TRAFFIC CONTROL474

46.63 150,470.00 70,165.98 6,268.54 SNOW & ICE CONTROL479
34.66 6,791.00 2,354.07 623.01 ADM & RECORDS483
2.75 5,361.00 147.58 147.58 SURFACE MAINT TRUNKLINE486

15.08 12,920.00 1,948.49 1,948.49 SWEEPING & FLUSHING TRUNKLINE488
100.00 0.00 71.60 48.43 SHOULDER MAINT TRUNKLINE489
80.21 4,550.00 3,649.71 2,513.51 DRAINAGE & BACKSLOPES TRUNKLIN491
100.00 0.00 150.72 150.72 ROADSIDE CLEANUP TRUNKLINE492

0.00 563.00 0.00 0.00 GRASS & WEED CONT TRUNKLINE493
0.00 1,041.00 0.00 0.00 TRAFFIC CONTROL TRUNKLINE494

100.80 49,520.00 49,915.65 2,316.04 WINTER MAINT TRUNKLINE497
0.00 41,932.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

39.96 366,535.00 146,459.50 23,855.32 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

43.19 75,085.00 32,429.82 10,886.89 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

39.96 366,535.00 146,459.50 23,855.32 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
40.51 441,620.00 178,889.32 34,742.21 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 3/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET
Revenues

4.49 66,520.00 2,988.92 0.00 TAXESTAXES
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 CONT FM LOCAL UNITSCONT
0.00 5,100.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV

16.30 550.00 89.64 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 31,932.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

37.34 123,842.00 46,237.18 11,111.19 STATE REVENUEST REV
5.20 13,882.00 721.58 180.39 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

20.25 247,126.00 50,037.32 11,291.58 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.03 10,215.00 2.94 0.00 SIDEWALKS444
0.00 24,054.00 0.00 0.00 ROAD CONSTRUCTION451

10.07 135,990.00 13,694.42 7,363.78 ROUTINE MAINT463
5.05 2,659.00 134.40 134.40 TRAFFIC CONTROL474

82.61 54,589.00 45,093.27 2,524.00 SNOW & ICE CONTROL479
74.48 3,280.00 2,442.90 622.99 ADM & RECORDS483
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

25.92 236,787.00 61,367.93 10,645.17 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

109.59 10,339.00 (11,330.61)646.41 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

25.92 236,787.00 61,367.93 10,645.17 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
20.25 247,126.00 50,037.32 11,291.58 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 4/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 271 - LIBRARY FUND
Revenues

4.51 88,426.00 3,985.25 0.00 TAXESTAXES
51.66 350.00 180.80 100.80 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
34.00 500.00 170.00 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
40.99 500.00 204.96 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
17.40 2,500.00 434.90 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
62.15 95,580.00 59,404.98 44,791.77 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

34.27 187,856.00 64,380.89 44,892.57 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
38.90 170,280.00 66,239.15 10,779.48 LIBRARY790
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

38.45 172,280.00 66,239.15 10,779.48 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

11.93 15,576.00 (1,858.26)34,113.09 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

38.45 172,280.00 66,239.15 10,779.48 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
34.27 187,856.00 64,380.89 44,892.57 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 271 - LIBRARY FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 5/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 273 - DOCK NO. 3  IMPROVEMENTS
Revenues

100.00 30,236.00 30,236.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

100.00 30,236.00 30,236.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 11,180.00 0.00 0.00 DOCK #3 IMPROVEMENTS598

0.00 11,180.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

158.67 19,056.00 30,236.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 11,180.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 30,236.00 30,236.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 273 - DOCK NO. 3  IMPROVEMENTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 6/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 285 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 
Revenues

100.00 117,078.00 117,078.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

100.00 117,078.00 117,078.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
100.00 54,511.99 54,511.99 500.00 PERSONNEL271
100.00 62,566.00 62,566.00 0.00 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT704

100.00 117,077.99 117,077.99 500.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.01 0.01 (500.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 117,077.99 117,077.99 500.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 117,078.00 117,078.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 285 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT :



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 7/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 584 - GOLF COURSE FUND
Revenues

0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
10.45 5,025.00 524.90 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 125.00 0.00 0.00 FINES AND FORFEITURESFIN/FOR
3.21 800.00 25.71 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.20 152,800.00 310.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

0.52 164,750.00 860.61 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
8.47 163,505.00 13,848.31 8,110.45 GOLF COURSE OPERATIONS797

35.97 2,721.00 978.84 243.78 DEBT SERVICE905

8.92 166,226.00 14,827.15 8,354.23 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

946.24 (1,476.00)(13,966.54)(8,354.23)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

8.92 166,226.00 14,827.15 8,354.23 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.52 164,750.00 860.61 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 584 - GOLF COURSE FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 8/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Revenues

24.83 524,435.00 130,225.82 0.00 TAXESTAXES
45.55 5,714.00 2,602.61 617.38 LICEENSES AND PERMITSLIC/PERM
18.82 90,740.00 17,080.44 (510.72)CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
20.11 56,330.00 11,328.34 21.67 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
12.69 2,845.00 360.92 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
18.69 576,267.00 107,683.95 (6,946.55)UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

21.43 1,256,331.00 269,282.08 (6,818.22)TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
44.28 90,490.00 40,071.45 10,285.25 SWR ADMIN540
32.85 413,700.00 135,892.34 30,860.69 SWR PLANT OPERATIONS541
31.30 92,810.00 29,050.32 6,715.98 SWR LN MAINT542
12.36 493,752.00 61,008.89 0.00 DEBT SERVICE905
76.50 106,047.00 81,126.35 0.00 SRF/ 5593 01906
0.00 41,800.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

28.03 1,238,599.00 347,149.35 47,861.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

439.13 17,732.00 (77,867.27)(54,680.14)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

28.03 1,238,599.00 347,149.35 47,861.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
21.43 1,256,331.00 269,282.08 (6,818.22)TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 9/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues

24.99 408,505.00 102,074.61 568.39 TAXESTAXES
17.84 477,988.00 85,276.77 (187.50)CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
18.89 78,701.00 14,865.35 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
21.43 1,644.00 352.23 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
38.99 26,695.00 10,408.39 2,361.52 OTHER FINANCING SOURCESO/FINAN
18.62 305,850.00 56,953.83 (28.68)UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

20.77 1,299,383.00 269,931.18 2,713.73 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 175,906.00 0.00 0.00 SRF-STATE REVOLVING FUNDS223

57.12 82,030.00 46,856.80 11,243.45 WTR ADMIN550
28.24 517,710.00 146,224.79 35,093.29 WTR PLANT OPERATIONS551
36.42 208,407.00 75,892.96 20,982.01 WTR LINE MAINT552
0.00 55,000.00 0.00 0.00 2000 WTR RR&I553

63.19 172,333.00 108,903.63 0.00 DEBT SERVICE905
0.00 76,600.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

29.34 1,287,986.00 377,878.18 67,318.75 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

947.15 11,397.00 (107,947.00)(64,605.02)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

29.34 1,287,986.00 377,878.18 67,318.75 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
20.77 1,299,383.00 269,931.18 2,713.73 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 10/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 594 - MARINA FUND
Revenues

0.00 4,537.00 0.00 0.00 TAXESTAXES
0.00 112,524.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV

16.28 1,000.00 162.82 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 130,400.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

56.78 260,000.00 147,625.92 (6,382.52)UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

29.07 508,461.00 147,788.74 (6,382.52)TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
27.68 36,205.00 10,021.17 2,484.24 MARINA ADMIN590
4.94 252,416.00 12,460.41 3,142.81 MARINA OPERATIONS597

29.09 11,200.00 3,258.51 0.00 INSURANCE851
10.38 82,025.00 8,512.50 0.00 DEBT SERVICE905
0.00 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

8.79 389,846.00 34,252.59 5,627.05 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

95.72 118,615.00 113,536.15 (12,009.57)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

8.79 389,846.00 34,252.59 5,627.05 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
29.07 508,461.00 147,788.74 (6,382.52)TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 594 - MARINA FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 11/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 596 - GARBAGE COLLECTION
Revenues

32.33 1,300.00 420.29 108.35 LICEENSES AND PERMITSLIC/PERM
26.75 122,306.00 32,721.50 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

26.81 123,606.00 33,141.79 108.35 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
24.34 123,606.00 30,089.43 10,029.81 GARBAGE COLLECTION528

24.34 123,606.00 30,089.43 10,029.81 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 3,052.36 (9,921.46)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

24.34 123,606.00 30,089.43 10,029.81 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
26.81 123,606.00 33,141.79 108.35 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 596 - GARBAGE COLLECTION:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 12/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 641 - EQUIPMENT FUND
Revenues

48.52 7,000.00 3,396.61 207.18 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
9.93 16,300.00 1,618.07 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV

46.57 177,100.00 82,482.78 12,956.82 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER FINANCING SOURCESO/FINAN

24.85 179,139.00 44,518.43 5,258.87 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

34.69 380,539.00 132,015.89 18,422.87 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
62.69 55,070.00 34,523.85 5,290.66 GARAGE MAINT581
43.88 250,030.00 109,701.34 14,685.26 EQUIPMENT MAINT582
0.00 39,602.00 0.00 0.00 DEBT SERVICE905
0.00 24,290.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

39.09 368,992.00 144,225.19 19,975.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

105.74 11,547.00 (12,209.30)(1,553.05)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

39.09 368,992.00 144,225.19 19,975.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
34.69 380,539.00 132,015.89 18,422.87 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 641 - EQUIPMENT FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 13/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 664 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT POOL
Revenues

0.00 12,900.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

0.00 27,900.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
23.30 27,900.00 6,499.79 347.61 CENTRAL EQUIP233

23.30 27,900.00 6,499.79 347.61 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 (6,499.79)(347.61)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

23.30 27,900.00 6,499.79 347.61 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 27,900.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 664 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT POOL:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 14/14Page:05/13/2022 04:47 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2022

% BDGT
USED

2022
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
04/30/2022

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

04/30/2022DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 729 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST
Revenues

9.78 1,200.00 117.33 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 41,800.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

0.27 43,000.00 117.33 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 23,500.00 0.00 0.00 ADMINISTRATION201
0.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

0.00 35,500.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1.56 7,500.00 117.33 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 35,500.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.27 43,000.00 117.33 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 729 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST:

105.25 350,502.01 (368,912.02)(146,128.19)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

29.21 6,479,586.99 1,892,630.90 327,757.10 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
22.31 6,830,089.00 1,523,718.88 181,628.91 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS





ST IGNACE AREA EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COUNCIL 
(Unofficial) Council Proceedings 

 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace –Area EMS Council was held on Tuesday, April 19, 2022 in 
the St. Ignace Municipal Building.  The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by Chairperson 
Blake-Thomas. 
 
Members Present:   Chairperson David Blake-Thomas, Trout Lake Township 

Treasurer Laurie Collier, Hendricks Township 
Eric Danielson, St. Ignace Township 
Vice Chairperson Austin Kimberling, Moran Township 
Ed Serwach, Brevort Township 
Secretary Darcy Long, City of St. Ignace 

 
Absent:  Dallas Hyde, Cheboygan Life Support Systems (CLSS) 
 
Others Present: Mark Wilk, Area Manager; Ken Collier; Stephanie Baar (minutes). 
 
Public Comment – None. 
 
Consideration of minutes from March 17, 2022 Council Meeting: 
It was moved by Councilmember Serwach, seconded by Treasurer Collier, to approve the 
minutes from March 17, 2022, as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Board Reports: 
 
A.  CLSS Financial & Operations Report – Chairperson Blake-Thomas reviewed the Profit & 
Loss statement for March 2022 with Council.  Chairperson Blake-Thomas noted that repairs & 
maintenance had been overbilled by about $4,100.00, and that should be remedied and 
reflected in the April financials.  
 
Chairperson Blake-Thomas noted that Commercial Income has been increasing over the last 
few months, but it is still much lower than it has historically been. The reason is unknown, but 
it’s something the Council will keep an eye on.  
 
Chairperson Blake-Thomas compared quarterly profits to the previous two years. Profit is up 
significantly from 2021, but about 25% lower than 2020. Much of this is reflected by the drop in 
Commercial Income.  
 
Mr. Wilk informed Council of recent operational activity regarding oxygen delivery fees. The 
Council has switched vendors from Sault Ste. Marie to Cheboygan with the hope that it will save 
about $4,000.00 per year. 
 
B.  SI-Area EMS Council Financial Report – Treasurer Collier reviewed the current balance 
sheet showing a total balance of $826,487.94. 
 
Mr. Wilk asks about a pending City payment, which should be received before the end of their 
fiscal year.  
 
Old Business: 



A.  New Station Update 
 
Chairperson Blake-Thomas informed Council that he has been working with C2AE regarding a 
land survey of the county property. There are also preliminary floor and site plan drafts from 
C2AE, which can hopefully be updated and shared for next month’s meeting. Senator Wayne 
Schmidt attended a Kiwanis Club meeting a few weeks ago, and Mr. Wilk approached him 
about the possibility of more funding for the new station. Senator Schmidt was supportive of the 
idea, and Mr. Wilk confirms that a letter of request has since been sent to his office. The 
expected timeline for contractor bids remains for late summer/early fall.  
 
Secretary Long questions what the proposal from the County might look like regarding the 
property. Chairperson Blake-Thomas speculated that the County might sell it to the Council for a 
dollar, and in return ask that the land be reverted back to their possession if it is no longer used 
by the Council.  
 
New Business: 
 
A. Policy re: Subscriptions 
 
CLSS offers a subscription plan which, if purchased, covers any billing resulting from the 
Council’s EMS services. Chairperson Blake-Thomas noted a concern of St. Ignace Area EMS 
being unable to respond to a call from someone with a subscription plan, and another service 
area responding who does not offer a subscription plan.  
 
It was moved by Chairperson Blake-Thomas, seconded by Treasurer Collier, that the Council 
instruct CLSS that any costs above insurance for subscription holders in the Straits service area 
will be covered by the Council. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Adjourn: 
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Chairperson Blake-Thomas, seconded by 
Councilmember Serwach, to adjourn the meeting at 2:26p.m.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
       _________________________________ 
            David Blake-Thomas, Chairperson 



STRAITS AREA EMS AUTHORITY 
(Unofficial) Board Proceedings 

 
A Regular Meeting of the Straits Area Emergency Medical Service (SAEMS) Authority was held 
on Tuesday, April 19, 2022 in the St. Ignace Municipal Building.  The meeting was called to 
order at 2:27 p.m. by Chairperson Blake-Thomas. 
 
Members Present:   Chairperson David Blake-Thomas, Trout Lake Township 

Treasurer Laurie Collier, Hendricks Township  
Eric Danielson, St. Ignace Township 
Vice Chairperson Austin Kimberling, Moran Township 
Ed Serwach, Brevort Township 
Secretary Darcy Long, City of St. Ignace 

   
 
Absent:  Dallas Hyde, Cheboygan Life Support Systems (CLSS) 
 
Others Present: Mark Wilk, Area Manager; Ken Collier; Stephanie Baar (minutes). 
 
Consideration of minutes from March 17, 2022 Authority Meeting:  
It was moved by Vice Chairperson Kimberling, seconded by Councilmember Serwach, to 
approve the minutes from March 17, 2022 as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Public Comment – None. 
 
Old Business: 
 
A. Swearing in of Board Officers: 
 
Appointed Board Officers Chairperson Blake-Thomas, Vice Chairperson Kimberling, Treasurer 
Collier, and Secretary Long took the Oath of Office.  
 
New Business: 
 
A.  Decisions for Today: 
 
Chairperson Blake-Thomas discussed two options for business models: continuing to utilize 
CLSS or moving all services in-house.  
He presented anticipated funding needs for the Authority over the next six years. Under the 
CLSS model, the Authority has no control over staffing/hours/overtime, which can significantly 
impact personnel costs. The projected personnel costs are based on running two crews full 
time, which is not currently happening. There is a projected net loss over the next six years—a 
millage, if pursued, would aim to cover costs.  
 
The projected cost difference between the two models, using the numbers as presented, would 
be $64,000.00 per year, with the standalone model costing more. However, this could be 
significantly less with reduced overtime personnel costs.  
 



The Authority discussed proposed millage rates to come to a consensus recommendation. It is 
an up-to millage, and could be adjusted down annually if necessary. Question of whether this 
millage could be exempted from the DDA capture base.  
 
It is the consensus of the Authority that a millage should be pursued. The cheapest and quickest 
election to pursue it in would be the November election of this year. Currently, there is no 
election scheduled across all communities for 2023.  
 
The proposed millage range discussed is between 1.5 and 2 mills. The length of the millage 
should be decided upon seeing the finance options for the building loan. 1.66 mills would bring 
in about $618,000.00 per year. It should be ensured that the millage will cover costs so that the 
Authority does not need to seek additional funds from their communities.  
 
The Authority comes to the consensus that they will approach their communities with a 
proposed millage of 1.75 and receive their input and feedback. 1.75 mills is far below the 
average EMS millage rate for other communities in the area.  
 
Chairperson Blake-Thomas further discussed the Authority’s relationship with CLSS. The 
following options exist: 1. status-quo option with existing relationship with CLSS, 2. moving 
everything in-house to a standalone option, or 3. hybrid option where some things are moved in-
house and some are left with CLSS. The Authority will eventually need to decide what would be 
best.  
 
B. Decisions at Next Board Meeting: 
 
 
The Authority will seek to vote on these matters at their next regular meeting in May.  
 
 
Adjourn: 
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Chairperson Blake-Thomas, seconded by 
Boardmember Serwach, to adjourn the meeting at 3:24 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
              David Blake-Thomas, Chairperson 


